ACEC/PA

AMERICAN CouNcIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES
of Pennsylvania

Annual Membership Meeting Agenda

May 21, 2019

Kimpton Aerston Hotel
8:45am
Conference Call 605-313-4802 253869#

Call to Order Schweiss
Action ltems
President’s Report Schweiss
Minutes - June 11, 2018 Schweiss
Financial Report Veydt
Membership Report Holloway
Bylaws Change Ratification Frary/Schweiss
National Directors Report O’Neill
Board of Directors & Officers Ratification Schweiss
Installation of Board of Directors & Officers W. Art Barrett

Adjourn Schweiss



—— e
AMERICAN CouNncIl OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES
of Pennsylvania

Annual Meeting of the Membership Minutes

Goat Island, Rhode Island
June 11, 2018

Call to Order
Joseph O’Neil called the meeting to order at 4:29 PM.

Board Members Present/Phone
Joe O’Neil, President

Perry Schweiss, President-Elect
Eric Frary, Vice President

Troy Holloway, Treasurer

Eric Veydt, Secretary

Matt Cummings, Past President
Chris Borton, National Director
Mike Bougher

Roseline Bougher

Yassmin Gramian

William Gross

Jon Livingston

Todd Morris

Lea Nadler

Matt Natale

Ed Reese

Derek Rogers

Margaret Talarico

Michael Girman, Government Affairs Committee Chair, Ex-Officio
Leeann Sherman, Executive Director, Ex-Officio

Guests included incoming board members Mark Markosky and Samantha Safara as well as other
members attending the 2018 Annual Meeting.

Meeting Minutes for Approval
As minutes from past Annual Meeting of the Membership were not recorded, they will not be
available to approve. This was disclosed to the membership.

President’s Report
O’Neil provided a recap of many of the accomplishments of the year and areas we have yet to
put in motion but are working on as an association.

Financial Report
Treasurer Holloway provided a brief synopsis of the financial status of ACEC/PA and
highlighted the new financial report changes that have occurred.




» MOTION to accept the Financial Report.

Motion was made by Borton, seconded by Livingston and unanimously approved.

Membership Report
An update on the current state of membership was provided by Frary (Membership Committee
Chair). -

Membership surveys were completed by approximately 50% of the member firms.

Invoices for membership will be dated 7/1/18 per President, President-Elect & Past President
approval. This will provide all members a free month of membership (June 2018) as we move to
a new fiscal year.

» MOTION to accept the Membership Report.

Motion was made by O’Neil, seconded by Veydt and unanimously approved.
seconded by Schweiss and unanimously approved.

Tellers Report

Veydt provided the list of directors and officers who appeared on the member ballots. All votes
were tabulated and collected by staff anonymously. Board slate was approved and with no
further approval needed, the 2018-2019 slate is accepted.

O’Neil announced the officers and asked all acknowledge acceptance of their new duties then
congratulated them.

Adjournment
With no further business, a motion was made to adjourn at 4:53pm by Frary, seconded by

Schweiss and unanimously approved.

The next meeting of the Membership will be in May 2019 with a location to be determined.

Prepared by

__Seeany - 7> hetpunt

Leeann Sherman
ACEC/PA Executive Director



AMENDED & RESTATED BYLAWS OF
AMERICAN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES OF PENNSYLVANIA

ARTICLE I
Name

Section 1.1 Name. The name of the corporation shall be the American Council of
Engineering Companies of Pennsylvania, a non-profit corporation incorporated in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “ACEC/PA”).

ARTICLE 11
Purposes and Operation

Section 2.1 Offices. The registered office of the ACEC/PA shall be 800 North Third
Street, Suite 301, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17102.' The ACEC/PA may also have offices at such
other places as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

Section 2.2 Purposes. The purposes of the ACEC/PA shall be:

(a) to promote the public welfare and enhance the reputation of the consulting engineer by
encouraging the maintenance of the highest standards of professional ethics and practice;

(b) to encourage the intellectual and scientific advancement and development of the
members in order to enhance their professional and economic welfare;

(c) to foster harmony, cooperation, and mutual understanding throughout the engineering and
allied professions; and

(d) to act on behalf of the members in connection with proposals of government or other
bodies concerning them.

Section 2.3  ACEC Membership. The ACEC/PA is a member organization of the
American Council of Engineering Companies, (the “ACEC”). Member Firms are automatically
members of ACEC and Affiliate Members may become members of ACEC if so desired, provided
that all rights or obligations of such derivative members with respect to ACEC shall be exercised
only through ACEC/PA as provided by the Bylaws of ACEC.

Section 2.4  Governing Law. The ACEC/PA is subject to the Pennsylvania Nonprofit
Corporation Law of 1988, as amended (the “PaNPCL").

ARTICLE III
Members

Section 3.1  Qualifications. The membership of ACEC/PA is set forth below and
collectively referred to as the “Members”. Each Member Firm and Affiliate Member shall maintain
compliance with the membership requirements of the bylaws of the Association.

! Note: Need to file change of registered address. Current address at Department of State is 2040 Linglestown Road.

AB579432:7



Section 3.2 Member Firm. A Member Firm shall:

(a) be limited to those individual firms, parent firms, branch offices, divisions or subsidiaries
that furnish independent engineering or land surveying services and maintain an office in
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

(b) maintain and have an established office for the private practice of engineering or land
surveying as a sole proprietorship, partnership or corporation, provided the engineering
activities are controlled by Resident Principal(s) who are licensed professional engineers
or the land surveying activities are controlled by individuals or officers who are licensed
land surveyors under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

(c) practice under an organizational arrangement that does not subordinate independent
professional judgment to or represent a conflict of interest with the purpose of ACEC/PA;

(d) have high professional repute and ethical standards; and
(e) authorize its Resident Principals to act on its behalf in activities of ACEC/PA.

Section 3.3 Affiliate Member. An Affiliate Member shall:

(a) not be eligible for membership in ACEC/PA as a Member described in Section 3.2; and

(b) not be eligible to vote on ACEC/PA business, serve on the Board of Directors, hold
office in ACEC/PA, or serve as a chairperson of a committee, but may be a member of a
committee.

Section 3.4  Resident Principal. A Resident Principal is an individual designated by a
Member Firm who is a sole proprietor, partner; officer, or manager:

(a) having an ownership interest, or
(b) exercising management responsibilities for technical or business decisions.
Section 3.5  Classes of Members. There shall be one class of voting members, the

Member Firms, as defined in this Article III. Each Member Firm shall have the number of votes as
determined by the following schedule:

Firm Index Number | Number of Votes

1&2 1

3,4,5 2

6,7,8 3

9,10, 11 4
12,13, 14 5

15& 16 6

17 or over 7

A6579432:7 2



The Firm Index Number is the index number initially calculated as set forth in the ACEC/PA
membership application. Such Firm Index Number shall be re-affirmed or re-calculated annually
based upon the Member Firm’s response to the member survey. The total vote of a Member Firm
may be cast by Resident Principal at the Annual Meeting or as required by mail or electronic ballot.
The Affiliate Members as defined in this Article III shall be non-voting members.

Section 3.6  Dues and Assessments. Dues for Member Firms shall be the total dues as
established annually by the Board of Directors (“State Dues™). Dues for Affiliate Members shall be
flat fees as established by the Board of Directors. ACEC membership dues shall be established
annually by the ACEC board of directors (“National Dues”) for Member Firms.

Special assessments may be collected from the Member Firms and Affiliate Members for use by
ACEC/PA (the “State Assessment”), or from Member Firms for use by ACEC, (the “National
Assessment”). State Assessments shall be approved by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of
Directors. National Assessments shall be levied upon the Member Firms when notice, giving full
details with the amount assessed and date payment is due, is received from ACEC,

Each Member Firm and Affiliate Member shall pay applicable State and National Dues and State and
National Assessments to ACEC/PA, or verify National Dues were paid to ACEC, except a Member
Firm or Affiliate Member that is a member of an ACEC Member Organization in another state may
pay National Dues and National Assessments directly to ACEC. A Member Firm or Affiliate
Member who fails to pay applicable State or National Dues or State or National Assessments within
ninety (90) days following the due date shall, upon the expiration of such ninety (90) day period, be
automatically suspended until all amounts owed have been paid to the ACEC/PA or ACEC. A
suspended Member Firm or Affiliate Member shall not be afforded the rights and duties of a Member
Firm or Affiliate Member until suspension expires.

Section 3.7  Resignation. Any Member Firm or Affiliate Member may terminate its
membership in ACEC/PA by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Executive Director. Such
termination shall not relieve a Member Firm or Affiliate Member of its applicable obligations,
including for State and National Dues and State and National Assessments, to ACEC/PA or ACEC
existing at the date of termination.

Section 3.8  Removal. A Member Firm or Affiliate Member may be expelled from
membership in ACEC/PA on the grounds that its conduct or policy is detrimental to the honor or
stated purpese of ACEC/PA and its objectives, or because such Member Firm or Affiliate Member
has ceased to meet the requirements for membership. Removal on these grounds shall be by two-
thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors, less the vote of any Director who is a Resident Principal
representing the Member Firm whose removal is under consideration, and only after the Member
Firm or Affiliate Member has had the opportunity to be heard by the Board of Directors. The action
of the Board shall be final, and no appeal from such action may be taken to any court of record, or
other hearing body, including the membership of ACEC/PA and ACEC or the Board of Directors
against the ACEC/PA, its Member Firms, Affiliate Members, Directors, Officers and Employees for
damages or otherwise, arising out of any hearing or removal proceeding under this Section. Member
Firms or Affiliate Members waive any claim for libel or slander against the ACEC/PA, its Member
Firms, Affiliate Members, Directors, Officers or Employees resulting from any hearing or expulsion
under this Section. If a Member Firm or Affiliate Member is expelled from membership in
accordance with this section, such removed Member Firm or Affiliate Member may apply for re-
admission to membership in ACEC/PA upon meeting the requirements for membership for the 12

A6579432:7 3



month period prior to application to membership and approval by a majority of the Board of
Directors.

Section 3.9.  Member Firm Emplovees. Each Member Firm shall report its average
number of employees for the portion of the firm located in Pennsylvania to ACEC/PA each year.
The average number of employees is to be based upon the total number of regular hours (non-
overtime hours) for which all employees are paid by the Member Firm or on the Member Firm’s
behalf on an annual basis divided by 2,080. In the case of full time salaried employees not paid on
an hourly basis, the same 2,080 shall be used to represent the total number of hours worked by each
full time salaried employee.

ARTICLE 1V
Meetings of Members

Section 4.1 Annual Meeting. Prior to the Annual Meeting, the Member Firms shall vote
via mail or electronic ballot electing the Officers, At-Large Directors, and Chapter Officers
nominated by the Board of Directors. At the Annual Meeting of the Member Firms and Affiliate
Members of ACEC/PA, the installation of Officers, At-Large Directors, and Chapter Officers shall
occur. The Annual Meeting shall be held on such date and at such place as may be determined by the
President.

Section4.2  Special Meetings. Special Meetings may be called by the President, the
Board of Directors, or Member Firms entitled to cast at least ten percent (10%) of the votes that all
Members are entitled to cast at the particular meeting. .

Section 4.3  Notice of Annual and Special Meetings. All Member Firms and Affiliate
Members shall be notified in writing or by email by the Secretary or the Secretary’s designee at least
two (2) weeks prior to each Meeting. Such notice shall contain the place, day and hour of the meeting
and, insofar as possible, the business to be transacted.

Section4.4  Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws, the number of
Member Firms represented in person or by proxy that constitutes a quorum at a meeting of Members
will be twenty (20). The vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the Members present or
represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present is necessary for the adoption of any
matter voted on by the Members, unless a greater proportion is required by the PaNPCL, the Articles
of Incorporation, or any provision of these Bylaws.

Section4.5  Proxy. A Member Firm may vote either in person or by proxy executed in
writing by the Resident Principal of the Member Firm or by his or her duly authorized attorney-in-
fact. No proxy will be recognized as valid after eleven months from the date of its execution unless
expressly provided otherwise in the proxy.

Section 4.6 ~ Majority Vote. The vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the
Member Firms present or represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present is

necessary for the adoption of any matter voted on by the Member Firms, unless a greater proportion
is required by the PaNPCL, the Articles of Incorporation or these bylaws.

ARTICLE V

A6579432:7 4



Chapters

Section 5.1 Chapters. The Chapters of ACEC/PA shall be Eastern, Central and Western
unless otherwise determined by the Board. The Chapters may organize and conduct local activities
as desirable.

Section 5.2 Chapter Affiliation. The Member Firms and Affiliate Members of ACEC/PA
may select the Chapter or Chapters in which affiliation is desired.

Section 5.3  Eligibility of Chapter Officers. The Chapter Officers shall be President and
Vice President for each chapter and shall be elected by the Members. Only Resident Principals of
Member Firms shall qualify as an officer of a Chapter. All Chapter Officers shall serve a term of two
(2) years until the time of the next Annual Meeting.

ARTICLE VI
Directors

Section 6.1  Number and Qualifications. The business of the ACEC/PA shall be conducted
by the Board of Directors in the best interest of the Member Firms and Affiliate Members. The
Board shall consist of at least eighteen (18) Directors as follows:

(a) the President;

(b) the President-Elect;

() the Vice President;

@ the Treasurer;

(e) the Secretary;

® the Immediate Past President/National Director;

(g) the President and Vice Presideﬁt of each of the Chapters; and

(h) two (2) Directors from each of the Chapters.

No more than one Resident Principal from any Member Firm shall serve on the Board of
Directors (including ex-officio members of the Board) at any time unless approved by vote of the
Board of Directors. The Executive Director and Chair of Government Affairs shall serve on the
Board of Directors ex-officio (without voting rights).

Section 6.2 Commencement of Term of Elected Directors. The term of a director shall
commence immediately after the Annual Meeting which they were elected. All Directors shall serve
a term of one year, except At-Large Directors who shall serve a term of two years, alternating with
three elected each year, until their successors are elected and qualified.

A6579432:7 5



Section 6.3  Vacancies. Director positions shall be declared vacant when the individual
involved no longer represents a Member Firm or is for any reason incapable of fulfilling assigned
responsibilities. In addition, the Board of Directors may, if it so chooses, declare a position vacant
after the individual filling that position misses three successive meetings of the Board of Directors. A
Director vacancy shall be filled, for the remainder of the term, by appointment of the President,
subject to approval of the Board of Directors.

Section 6.4 Liability of Directors.

(a) No person who is or was a Director of this ACEC/PA shall be personally
liable for monetary damages for any action taken, or any failure to take any action, as a Director
unless:

() the Director has breached or failed to perform the duties of her or his
office as set forth in appropriate sections of the PANPCL; and

(ii) the breach or failure to perform constitutes self-dealing, willful
misconduct or recklessness.

(b) This provision of the Bylaws shall not apply to:

(i) the responsibility or liability of a Director pursuant to any criminal
statute; or

(ii) the liability of a Director for the payment of taxes pursuant to local,
state or federal law.

(©) If the PaNPCL hereafter is amended to authorize the further elimination or
limitation of the liability of Directors, then the liability of a Director of the ACEC/PA, in addition to
the limitation on personal liability provided herein, shall be limited to the fullest extent permitted by
the amended PaNPCL.

Section 6.5 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors, shall be held
immediately following the Annual Meeting of the Members or at such other date selected by the
Board of Directors, not later than sixty (60) days after the Annual Meeting each year, and at the
registered office of ACEC/PA, or at such other location, as may be determined by the President and
as shall be designated in the notice of said meeting.

Section 6.6 Regular and Special Meetings. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall
be at the call of the President. A special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called upon
written request of any two (2) of its members, but they must present written confirmation that a
quorum will attend.

Board Meetings are open to all Member Firms and Affiliate Members of ACEC/PA except when the
President calls for Executive Session in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order.

Section 6.7  Notice. Notice of all meetings shall be given at least two (2) days before the
meeting.

A6579432:7 6



Section 6.8 ~ Quorum. The presence of a majority of the Directors then in office shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business, and the acts of a majority of the Directors
present at a meeting, at which a quorum is present, shall be the acts of the Board of Directors unless a
greater proportion is required by the PaNPCL, the Articles of Incorporation, or any provision of these
Bylaws.

Section 6.9 Voting. Each Director shall have one (1) vote.

Section 6.10  Action by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at
any meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if
prior to such action a written consent thereto is signed by all members of the Board of Directors or all
members of the committee, as the case may be, and such written consent is filed with the minutes of
proceedings of the Board of Directors or the committee.

Section6.11  Remote Meetings. Any one or more Directors may participate in a meeting
of the Board of Directors or of a committee of the Board of Directors by means of conference
telephone or other electronic technology by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can hear each other. Such participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, use of conference telephone and other electronic
technology shall be permitted at the discretion of the Board, which shall be deemed to have permitted
such use unless and until it shall have taken due action to prohibit such use.

ARTICLE VII
Committees

Section 7.1 Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a
majority of the Directors in office, may designate one or more committees, each of which may
consist of two (2) or more Directors, which committees, to the extent permitted by law and provided
in said resolution or any amendment of such resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the
Board of Directors in the management of ACEC/PA. The designation of such committees and the
delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual
Director, of any responsibility imposed upon it, him or her by law. The President shall monitor
actions of the committees of the ACEC/PA and shall recommend to the Board of Directors the
creation, dissolution and consolidation of committees and appoint all Committee Chairpersons not
otherwise identified in these Bylaws.

Section 7.2  Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall consist of the
President, the President-Elect, and the Immediate Past President/National Director. This Committee
shall nominate no less than one candidate for each office to be voted on by the Members and take
office at the Annual Meeting and shall provide the proposed slate of candidates to the Board of
Directors at a Board of Directors Meeting prior to the Annual Meeting.

Section 7.3 Other Committees. Other committees not having and exercising the authority
of the Board of Directors may be designated by a resolution adopted by the Board.

Section 7.4  Term. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next
annual meeting of the Board of Directors or until his or her successor is appointed, unless the

A6579432:7 7



committee shall be sooner terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committee by
the Board of Directors (for cause), or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

Section 7.5  Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by
appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.

Section 7.6 ~ Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of
Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and
the act of a majority of the members present and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the committee.

Section 7.7  Chairperson. The Board of Directors shall designate one member of each
committee as Chairperson.

Section 7.8 ~ Governance. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not
inconsistent with these Bylaws or with rules or guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 7.9 Authority. Any committee of the Board of Directors, to the extent provided
in the resolution of the Board of Directors, may have and exercise all of the powers and authority of
the Board of Directors, except that no such committee shall have any power or authority as to the
following:

(a) The filling of vacancies in the Board of Directors;
(b) The adoption, amendment or repeal of the Bylaws;
(c) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board of Directors; and

(d) Action on matters committed by the Bylaws or resolution of the Board of Directors, or by
law, to another committee of the Board of Directors or to the Board of Directors.

Section 7.10  Compensation. Committee members shall serve without compensation
except that certain expenses may be reimbursed within budgetary limits, as approved by the Board of
Directors.

ARTICLE VIII
Officers

Section 8.1 Qualification and Election. The Officers shall include a President, a
President-Elect, a Vice-President, the Immediate Past President/National Director, Treasurer, and a
Secretary. Only Resident Principals of Member Firms shall qualify as officers.

Section 8.2  Term. The Officers shall serve for a term of one (1) year or until their
successors have been elected and qualified. An Officer may succeed himself or herself.

Section 8.3  Vacancies. An Officer position shall be declared vacant when the individual

involved no longer represents a Member Firm or is for any reason incapable of fulfilling assigned
responsibilities for a period of time longer than 90 days. In addition, the Board of Directors may, if it

A6579432:7 8



so chooses, declare a position vacant after the individual filling that position misses three successive
meetings of the Board of Directors. A vacancy in the office of the President-Elect, the Vice
President, the Secretary or the Treasurer shall be filled, for the remainder of the term, by appointment
of the President, subject to approval of the Board of Directors. A vacancy in the office of President
shall be filled by the majority vote of the Directors then in office.

Section 8.4  President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of ACEC/PA and
shall have the responsibility of general management of its affairs. The President shall preside over all
meetings of the Board of Directors. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees
except the Nominating Committee but shall not be counted in determining the presence of a quorum
for the transaction of any business by any Committee. The President shall be ACEC/PA’s alternate
national director to ACEC.,

Section 8.5 President-Elect. The President-Elect shall have been an Officer of ACEC/PA.
The President-Elect shall prepare and plan for his or her year as President and may be assigned duties
by the President. The President- Elect shall assume the office of President at the conclusion of the
term as President-Elect. The President-Elect, in the absence of the President, shall assume the duties
of the President.

Section 8.6  Vice President. The Vice President may be assigned duties by the President.
The Vice President, in the absence of the President and President-Elect shall assume the duties of the
President,

Section 8.7  Secretary. The Secretary shall be responsible for the normal duties of an
elected Secretary, except those specifically assigned to the Executive Director. Certain duties of the
Secretary may be performed by the Executive Director under the direction of the Secretary when
approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 8.8  Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of ACEC/PA funds and any
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Section 8.9  Immediate Past President/National Director. The Immediate Past
President/National Director shall serve as the National Director to ACEC shall report on all matters
discussed and actions taken at meetings of the board of directors of ACEC, including his or her own
expressed views and votes thereon. The Immediate Past President-National Director shall also serve
as the chair of the Nominating Committee. The Board of Directors shall instruct the Immediate Past
President-National Director with respect to the official position to be taken and expressed at meetings
of the board of directors of ACEC on motions, proposals or discussions on the agenda at such
meetings.

ARTICLE IX
Services and Employees

Section 9.1 Appointment. The Board of Directors shall within budgetary limits be
responsible for the securing of professional, technical and non-technical services and shall employ a
salaried Executive Director. The terms and conditions of employment shall be specified by the Board
of Directors.

Section 9.2.  Authority and Responsibility. The Executive Director shall manage all
activities of ACEC/PA subject to policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directors and at

A6579432:7 9



the direction of the President. The Executive Director shall employ, manage and terminate the
employment of members of the staff necessary to carry on the work of ACEC/PA within the
approved budget. The Executive Director shall assist in, support and supplement the activities of the
Officers, Directors and Committees, and perform other day-to-day tasks normal to the position, not in
conflict with the Bylaws. The Executive Director shall serve without vote as an ex-officio member of
the Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

Section 9.3.  Annual Review. The Immediate Past President/National Director, President
and President-Elect shall annually, or as deemed necessary by the Board, review the duties,
performance and compensation of the Executive Director and secured services and take action as
necessary in the best interests of the membership.

ARTICLE X
Finance

Section 10.1  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of ACEC/PA shall end on June 30 each year, or
such other day as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time.

Section 10.2  Accounting Review. The accounts of ACEC/PA shall undergo an accounting
review not less than annually by a Certified Public Accountant who shall be recommended by the
Executive Director with the approval of the Board of Directors and who shall provide a report to the
Board of Directors. Accounting Review should include annual review of taxes, Annual Report, bank
accounts, etc.

ARTICLE XI
Rules of Order

Section 11.1  Rules of Order. The rules contained in the current edition of Robert’s Rules
of Order shall govern tie conduct of meetings of ACEC/PA, Board of Directors, and Executive
Committee in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the
Bylaws and any special rules ACEC/PA may adopt.

ARTICLE XII
Indemnification

Section 12.1  Third-party actions. The ACEC/PA shall indemnify any person who was or is
a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the
right of the ACEC/PA), by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a representative of the
ACEC/PA, or is or was serving at the request of the ACEC/PA as a representative of another
domestic or foreign corporation for profit or not-for-profit, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the action or proceeding if he
or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to,
the best interests of the ACEC/PA and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable
cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action or proceeding by judgment,
order, settlement or conviction or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not of itself
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner that he or she

A6579432:7 10



reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the ACEC/PA and, with respect
to any criminal proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.

Section 12.2  Derivative and Corporate Actions. The ACEC/PA shall indemnify any person
who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or completed
action by or in the right of the ACEC/PA to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that
he or she is or was a representative of the ACEC/PA or is or was serving at the request of the
ACEC/PA as a representative of another domestic or foreign corporation for profit or not-for-profit,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees)
actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of the action if
he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed
1o, the best interests of the ACEC/PA. Indemnification shall not be made under this section in
respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which the person has been adjudged to be liable to the
ACEC/PA unless and only to the extent that the court of common pleas of the judicial district
embracing the county in which the registered office of the ACEC/PA is located or the court in which
the action was brought determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in
view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnify
for such expenses that the court of common pleas or other court shall deem proper.

Section 12.3  Advancing Expenses. Expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in
defending any action or proceeding referred to in Section 12.1 (relating to third-party actions) or
Section 12.2 (relating to derivative and corporate actions) shall be paid by the ACEC/PA in advance
of the final disposition of the action or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the representative to repay the amount if it is ultimately determined that he or she is not entitled to be
indemnified by the ACEC/PA as authorized in this Article or otherwise.

Section 12.4  Procedure for Effecting Indemnification and Advancing Expenses. Unless

ordered by a court, any indemnification or advancement of expenses under Section 12.1 (relating to
third-party actions), Section 12.2 (relating to derivative and corporate actions) or Section 12.3
(relating to advancing expenses) shall be made by the ACEC/PA only as authorized in the specific
case upon a determination that indemnification of the representative is proper in the circumstances
because he orshe has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in those sections. The
determination shall be made:

(a) by a majority vote of the Directors who are not parties to such action, suit or
proceeding, even though less than a quorum;

(b) by a committee of such Directors designated by a majority vote of such
Directors, even though less than a quorum;

(c) if there are no such Directors, or if such Directors so direct, by independent
legal counsel in a written opinion; or

(d) by the Member Firms.

Section 12.5  Supplementary Coverage.

(a) General Rule. The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided
by or granted pursuant to Section 12.1 (relating to third-party actions), Section 12.2 (relating to

A6579432:7 11



derivative and corporate actions) or Section 12.3 (relating to advancing expenses) shall not be
deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a person seeking indemnification or advancement of
expenses may be entitled under any agreement, vote of Directors who were not parties to the action
or proceeding, or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another
capacity while holding that office. The ACEC/PA may create a fund of any nature, which may, but
need not, be under the control of a trustee, or otherwise secure or insure in any manner its
indemnification obligations, whether arising under or pursuant to this section or otherwise.

(b) When Indemnification is not to be Made. Indemnification pursuant to
subsection (a) shall not be made in any case where the act or failure to act giving rise to the claim for
indemnification is determined by a court to have constituted willful misconduct or recklessness.

©) Grounds. Indemnification pursuant to subsection (a) under any agreement,
vote of Directors or otherwise may be granted for any action taken or any failure to take any action
and may be made whether or not the ACEC/PA would have the power to indemnify the person under
any other provision of law except as provided in this section and whether or not the indemnified
liability arises or arose from any threatened, pending or completed action by or in the right of the
ACEC/PA.

(d) Trust Property. This Article shall not affect the liability of a representative
with respect to the administration of assets held by the ACEC/PA pursuant to its authority to take and
hold trust property.

Section 12.6  Power to Purchase Insurance. The ACEC/PA shall have power to purchase
and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a representative of the ACEC/PA or is
or was serving at the request of the ACEC/PA as a representative of another domestic or foreign
corporation for profit or not-for-profit, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any
liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as
such, whether or not the ACEC/PA would have the power to indemnify him against that liability
under the provisions of this Article.

Section 12.7  Application to Surviving or New Corporations. For the purposes of this
Article, references to “the ACEC/PA™ include all constituent corporations absorbed in a
consolidation, merger or division, as well as the surviving or new corporations surviving or resulting
therefrom, so that any person who is or was a representative of the constituent, surviving or new
corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the constituent, surviving or new corporation as a
representative of another domestic or foreign corporation for profit or not-for-profit, partnership,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall stand in the same position under the provisions of this
Article with respect to the surviving or new corporation as he or she would if he or she had served
the surviving or new corporation in the same capacity.

Section 12.8  Application to Emplovee Benefit Plans. For the purposes of this Article:

(a) References to “other enterprises™ shall include employee benefit plans;
(b) References to “serving at the request of the ACEC/PA” shall include any

service as a representative of the nonprofit corporation that imposes duties on or involves services by
the representative with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries;

A6579432:7 12



© Excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to any employee benefit plan
pursuant to applicable law shall be deemed “fines™;

(d Action with respect to an employee benefit plan taken or omitted in good
faith by a representative of the ACEC/PA in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in the
interest of the participants and beneficiaries of the plan shall be deemed to be action in a manner that
is not opposed to the best interests of the ACEC/PA.

Section 12.9  Duration and Extent of Coverage. The indemnification and advancement of
expenses provided by or granted pursuant to this Article shall, unless otherwise provided when
authorized or ratified, continue as to a person who has ceased to be a representative of the ACEC/PA
and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and personal representative of that person.

ARTICLE XIII
Miscellaneous

Section 13.1  Amendment of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. Amendments to the
Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws may be proposed to the Board of Directors by a majority vote
of all Member Firms present at any meeting of ACEC/PA or directly to the Board of Directors by the
Bylaws Committee. Amendments submitted to the Board of Directors shall be duly and carefully
considered by them and, upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors, shall be submitted to
Member Firms for mail or electronic balloting in aceordance with the voting procedures described in
Article IV of the Bylaws. Proposed amendments shall be mailed or emailed by the Secretary or the
Secretary’s designee, to Member Firms at least thirty (30) days before the date ballots are due.
Voting on amendments shall require a quorum of twenty percent (20%) of the Member Firms present
in person or by proxy and must be approved by two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by Member Firms.

A6579432:7 13



e ——————

ACEC/PA

AMERICAN CouNciL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES
of Pennsylvania

2019-2020 Board of Directors & Officers

Executive Committee
Eric Frary, P.E., President — Michael Baker International
Troy Holloway, P.E., President-Elect — Century Engineering, Inc.
Eric Veydt, P.E., Vice President — Gannett Fleming, Inc.
Roseline Bougher, Treasurer — A.D. Marble & Company, Inc.
Michael Bougher, P.E., Secretary — Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.
Perry Schweiss, P.E., Immediate Past President — SPK Engineering, Inc.
Perry Schweiss, P.E., ACEC National Director — SPK Engineering, Inc.

Michael Girman, P.E., Government Affairs Chair — AECOM - Ex-Officio

Leeann Sherman, Executive Director — ACEC/PA— Ex-Officio

At-Large Directors

2019-2021:
Western - Daniel Laird— A&A Consultants
Central - Rosanna Smithnosky, P.E. — Susquehanna Civil, Inc.
Eastern - Jeff Guzy, P.E. — RK&K

2018-2020:
Western - Mark Markosky, P.E., — The Markosky Engineering Group, Inc.
Central - Matthew Natale, P.E., — Johnson, Mirmiran & Thompson, Inc.
Eastern - Matthew Marquardt, P.E. — Urban Engineers, Inc.

Regional Chapters

Eastern Chapter:
Joseph Riley, P.E., Chapter President — WSP
Casey Moore, P.E., Chapter Vice President — McMahon Associates, Inc.

Central Chapter:
Sandra Basehore, Chapter President — Skelly and Loy, Inc.
Paul McNamee, P.E. Chapter Vice President — KCI Technologies, Inc.

Western Chapter:
Derek Rogers, Chapter President — RIG Consulting, Inc.
Ryan Gargan, P.E., Chapter Vice President — H.W. Lochner, Inc.



AMERICAN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES
of Pennsylvania

SCRIPT FOR INSTALLATION OF OFFICERS ACEC/PA

Thank you, Perry. It is a pleasure and honor for me to participate in the installation of the officers and directors
of ACEC/PA for 2019-2020. I will ask that you hold your applause until they are sworn in:

I will now call the names of the six ACEC/PA officers and ask them to come forward.

e Eric Frary, President

e Troy Holloway, President Elect

o Eric Veydt, Vice President

¢ Roseline Bougher, Treasurer

¢ Michael Bougher, Secretary

e Perry Schweiss, Immediate Past President and ACEC National Director

Now, would the three At-Large Directors please come forward.

e Daniel Laird, Western At-Large Director
¢ Rosanna Smithnosky, Central At-Large Director
o Jeff Guzy, Eastern At-Large Director

Next will our newly appointed directors please come forward:

o Joseph Riley, Eastern Chapter President

e (Casey Moore, Eastern Chapter Vice President

e Paul McNamee, Central Chapter Vice President
¢ Ryan Gargan, Western Chapter Vice President

Finally, I would like to welcome our current directors to join us:

o Mark Markosky, Western At-Large Director

o Matthew Natale, Central At-Large Director

e Matthew Marquardt, Eastern At-Large Director
¢ Sandra Basehore, Central Chapter President

¢ Derek Rogers, Western Chapter President

I will now ask these officers and directors to undertake a pledge to the association, by responding “I will” to this
question:

“Do each of you, in the presence of your fellow members, pledge yourself to faithfully discharge the duties of
the office to which you have been elected in the American Council of Engineering companies of Pennsylvania?
(“I will”)

Then, it is my pleasure as of the national Council to confirm that you have been duly sworn in
as the 2019-2020 ACEC Board of Directors.

These men and women are to be highly commended for their service to the organization and the great
confidence that you have in them. Election to these leadership positions is a great honor.

Congratulations and best wishes for a successful year.



